
CITY OF CEDARBURG 
PLAN COMMISSION 

February 5, 2024 

A regular meeting of the Plan Commission, City of Cedarburg, Wisconsin, will be held at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, 
February 5, 2024.  Attendees have the option of joining the meeting in person at City Hall, W63N645 
Washington Avenue, upper level, Council Chambers, or online via the following Zoom link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86542165274 

1. CALL TO ORDER -

REVISED AGENDA - Item 6.B. 

Mayor Mike O’Keefe 

2. ROLL CALL: Present -  Mayor Mike O’Keefe, Council Member Patricia Thome, Jack Arnett, Adam
Voltz, Kip Kinzel, Sig Strautmanis, Tom Wiza 

  Also Present -  Jon Censky, City Planner 

3. STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 17, 2024

5. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS

6. REGULAR BUSINESS; AND ACTION THEREON

* A. Petitioner: Mike LaRosa, Pioneer Real Estate Development, LLC. 
Request: Approval of a Certified Survey (CSM) 
Briefing: The applicant is requesting approval of his CSM to split the 2.1-acre 

Pioneer Road frontage from the 9.1-acre parent parcel located at 
N144W5800 Pioneer Road. 

Current Zoning: M-2, General Manufacturing District 
Aldermanic District: 5 
Tax Key No.: 130510211013 
Previous Discussion Dates:  

* B. Petitioner: 
Request: 

Briefing: 

Current Zoning: 
Tax Key No.:  
Aldermanic District:  
Previous Discussion Dates: 

7. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS

**8. MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

9. ADJOURNMENT

1 of 46

Planning Commission 
Review and possibly recommend approval of the updated and revised 
Zoning Code. 
Click here to view Title 13 Zoning Code draft

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86542165274
https://www.cityofcedarburg.wi.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif4241/f/uploads/2024_draft_-_title_13_-_version_for_plan_commission_2.pdf


* Information attached for Commission Members; available through City Clerk’s office.
** This topic is to be limited to such items as establishing the next meeting date, items for the next agenda, reminders of scheduled community

events, etc. 

City of Cedarburg is an affirmative action and equal opportunity employer. All qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, veteran status, or genetic information. City of 
Cedarburg is committed to providing access, equal opportunity, and reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities in employment, its 
services, programs, and activities. To request reasonable accommodation, contact the Clerk’s Office at (262) 375-7606 or email: 
cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us. 

MEMBERS – PLEASE NOTIFY CITY CLERK’S 
OFFICE IF UNABLE TO ATTEND MEETING 

It is possible that a quorum of members of the Common Council may attend Plan Commission meetings held the first Monday of each month at 7:00 
p.m. No business will be conducted by the Common Council and no action will be taken.  Attendance is for the purpose of information gathering and
exchange.

01/30/2024 

2 of 46

mailto:cityhall@ci.cedarburg.wi.us


PLN20240117-1 
UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

CITY OF CEDARBURG  
PLAN COMMISSION  

January 17, 2024 

A regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Cedarburg was held on Monday, 
December 4, 2023, at Cedarburg City Hall, W63N645 Washington Avenue, upper level, 
Council Chambers and online via the zoom app. The meeting was called to order at 7:01 
p.m. by Mayor Michael J. O’Keefe.

Roll Call Present - Mayor Michael J. O’Keefe, Council Member Patricia 
Thome, Adam Voltz, Jack Arnett, Sig Strautmanis  

Excused -  Tom Wiza, Kip Kinzel 

 Also Present - City Planner Jon Censky, Administrative Secretary 
Theresa Hanaman, Chris Maresh, Terrance King,  
Kristin Burkhart  

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 

Administrative Secretary Hanaman confirmed that the agenda for the meeting had been 
posted and distributed in compliance with the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion was made by Council Member Thome, seconded by Commissioner Voltz to 
approve the minutes from December 4, 2023, to include email correspondence from 
Michael Wirth.   

Motion carried without a negative vote, with Commissioner Wiza and Commissioner 
Kinzel excused.  

COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM CITIZENS 

None  

REQUESTING REMOVAL OF THE NO-LEFT TURN STIPULATION THAT WAS 
PLACED ON THE WASHINGTON AVENUE EGRESS FROM THE CHURCH PARKING 
LOT BE REMOVED  

3 of 46



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20240117-2 
January 17, 2024  UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

Planner Censky explained that the St. Francis Borgia Parish is asking that the No-LeftTurn 
requirement be removed from their parking lot to allow those wishing to head south into 
Washington Avenue traffic. Having had the experience of complying with this requirement 
for the past several years, St Francis Borgia feel this requirement is not necessary as 
their typical service hours are at times when traffic on Washington Avenue is low. 
Accordingly, they would like the ability to exit the church parking lot into the south bound 
Washington Avenue traffic.  A review of our records indicates that this stipulation was put 
in place as part of the approval of the Arrabelle site plan back in 2017 to address concerns 
regarding the impact of having the parking lot traffic exiting onto Washington Avenue. 
Because this stipulation was placed on the use of the parking lot by action of this Planning 
Commission, the Planning Commission is responsible for its removal.  

Council Member Thome asked if the City Engineering staff has an objection.  Planner 
Censky confirmed there is no objection from the City Engineer.  

Action: Council Member Patricia Thome made a motion to approve the request to remove 
the No-Left Turn requirement.  Commissioner Strautmanis seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried without a negative vote, with Commissioner Wiza and Commissioner Kinzel 
excused.  

REVIEW AND POSSIBLY RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE UPDATED AND 
REVIZED ZONING CODE  

Planner Censky discussed some of the changes and updates that have been made to the 
Zoning Code such as the removal of zoning district codes that are not used and cleaning 
up verbiage.  Planner Censky made adjustments to codes that will rely on staff decision 
as uses come forward.  The Planning Commission will have to rely on staff to discuss and 
see if it’s appropriate.  Planner Censky mentioned he checked zoning codes in other 
municipalities as a template.   

The Planning Commission discussed posting the Zoning Code for the public to review.  It 
was discussed to make the document in PDF form and the ability to search for specific 
content on the City of Cedarburg’s website.  

Action: No action made 

CONSULTATION REGARDING LOCATING A CELLULAR TOWER IN THE BUSINESS 
PARK  

City Administrator Hilvo discussed a wireless telecommunication firm who is seeking to 
locate a cell tower within or near the city’s Highway 60 Business Park. The request is for 

4 of 46



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20240117-3 
January 17, 2024  UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

a monopole designed to support several wireless antennas. The tower measures 195 
high and is proposed to be located directly northeast of the multi-tenant building approved 
last month for Lot number 2 of the park.  City Administrator Hilvo is requesting staff to 
provide their thoughts and direction regarding having a cell tower in the Business Park, 
the height of the tower, the specific location, and any other thoughts.  Tower Co. has 
identified the north side of Cedarburg Business Park as a spot within the City and will 
remain the City’s ownership.  The City will continue to work with Tower Co and the City 
Attorney on the lease agreement.  The lease agreement terms include a willingness to 
pay some funds up front.   City Administrator Hilvo included as the City moves forward, 
this will be presented to the Common Council that, the annual payments will help with the 
City's TID.  The timeline for development after approvals would start in 2025.  City 
Administrator Hilvo informed the Planning Commission there would be no upfront cost, 
and the service road that was already started would need to be continued at no cost to 
the City and be paid for by Tower Co.  There is currently one tenant with an initial lease. 
The more tenants on the tower would allow for additional compensation for the City.     

Commissioner Strautmanis questioned if certain carriers or any other tenants request 
another antenna.  Administrator Hilvo advised that the tower will be designed to support 
several competing antenna installations.  

Tower Co. engineers are checking to see if the triangular configuration will fit on the space 
available.  City Administrator Hilvo believes that any future tenants at the business park 
will not be affected.  City Administrator Hilvo stated there is no competition with the other 
tower on Western Avenue and the next step would be for the City Attorney and City 
Administrator to work on the lease agreement and take to Common Council for approval 
and to Planning Commission for a public hearing.  

Planner Censky stated procedurally, it will have to go through a conditional use process 
then public hearing.  

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Terrance King, W63N762 Sheboygan Road 

Resident Terrance King asked if the tower on Western Avenue is full and when it was first 
designed, was it large enough.  There is concern that this tower will not be designed with 
the capacity that the City needs, and Cedarburg will need another tower.  

City Administrator Hilvo mentioned the tower on Western Avenue may have one spot 
available but would have to confirm.  

5 of 46



PLAN COMMISSION PLN20240117-4 
January 17, 2024  UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

Council Member Thome informed Resident Terrance King that the City worked with a 
tower consultant on the number of customers allowed on each tower.  

Action:  No action made  

COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS 

Commissioner Strautmanis commented on how the Planning Commission concluded the 
discussion of the parcel on Highway 60 as part of a larger land use and discussion for all 
property along Highway 60.  As the City updates the land use plans it’s suggested the 
Planning Commission should have a joint meeting with Common Council.    

Planner Censky is working with Administrator Hilvo to schedule sometime in February for 
a joint meeting with Common Council to discuss Highway 60, also the Wirth property is 
still up for discussion.  

MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mayor O’Keefe thanked Council Member Thome, City Planner Censky, and 
Commissioner Strautmanis for helping with the zoning revisions and Commission 
Members for their work on Title 13 Zoning Code.  

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Commissioner Voltz, seconded by Council Member Thome to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:35 p.m. The motion carried without a negative vote, with 
Commissioner Wiza and Commissioner Kinzel excused.  

Theresa Hanaman  
Administrative Secretary 

6 of 46



7 of 46



LA ROSA LAND DIVISION 
To: Cedarburg Plan Commission            Prepared by: Jonathan Censky, Planner 

Agenda Item:  6.A.   Date: February 5, 2024 

General Information 

Applicant: Mike LaRosa 

Status of Applicant: Owner 

Location: N144W5800 Pioneer Road 

Requested Action: Land Division 

Existing Zoning: M-2 General Manufacturing District

Lot Size: 2.1acres

Existing Land Use: Vacant

Report:  
This certified survey map (CSM) will serve to split the 2.1-acre Pioneer Road frontage portion of 9.1-
acre site located at the above reference address. Since this land division does not include the 
dedication of right-of-way for public road purposes, Plan Commission approval is all that is necessary. 
Commissioners will recall that this is the site that has been targeted for a future hotel, however, since 
they are not ready with plans for the hotel yet, this request is simply to prepare for the sale of the site.  

Staff Comments: 
This site is zoned M-2 General Manufacturing and staff’s review of the CSM indicates full compliance 
with the dimensional requirements of the M-2 District. However, the monument identification sign for 
the Zuern business is located on this parcel and therefore, the applicant will need to relocate the sign 
or create an easement to address the off-site sign before the CSM is recorded. 

8 of 46



9 of 46



10 of 46



11 of 46



12 of 46



13 of 46



ZONING TEXT RECODIFICATION 
 

To: City of Cedarburg Plan Commission Prepared by: Jonathan Censky, City Planner 

Agenda Item: 6.B. Date:  February 5, 2024 

General Information  

Applicant: Cedarburg Plan Commission 

Requested Action: 
 
Zoning Code Recodification 

  
 
Report: 
At last month’s meeting, Commissioners were provided with the revised Code, and you were asked to 
review it to make sure it reflected all the changes we discussed. In reviewing the code that was 
handed out last month, it was discovered that the Introduction and General Provisions of the code 
were not included in the copy you received. Those sections will be handed out at Monday’s meeting.  
With those additions, if Commissioners are now prepared to recommend approval, we will then send 
it to the Common Council for their review and ultimate adoption.  

14 of 46



15 of 46



16 of 46



17 of 46



18 of 46



19 of 46



20 of 46



21 of 46



22 of 46



23 of 46



24 of 46



25 of 46



26 of 46



27 of 46



28 of 46



29 of 46



30 of 46



31 of 46



32 of 46



33 of 46



34 of 46



35 of 46



36 of 46



37 of 46



38 of 46



39 of 46



40 of 46



41 of 46



42 of 46



43 of 46



44 of 46



45 of 46



46 of 46


	ZONING CODE Chapter 1 Article A, B, C.pdf
	Zoning recodification February 5.pdf
	Land Development -Pioneer Real Estate Development, LLC.pdf
	LaRosa CSM-hotel.pdf
	2024-01-17 min unapproved with attachment-revised.pdf
	STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	REQUESTING REMOVAL OF THE NO-LEFT TURN STIPULATION THAT WAS PLACED ON THE WASHINGTON AVENUE EGRESS FROM THE CHURCH PARKING LOT BE REMOVED
	REVIEW AND POSSIBLY RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE UPDATED AND REVIZED ZONING CODE
	CONSULTATION REGARDING LOCATING A CELLULAR TOWER IN THE BUSINESS PARK
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PLAN COMMISSIONERS
	MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
	ADJOURNMENT

	2024-0205 Agenda.pdf



